
          

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 18, 2021 
10:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Town Center at Verona Walk - Rear Walkway Overlooking Pavilion 

8090 Sorrento Lane  
Naples, Florida 34114 

Due to Covid Restrictions, Masks and Social Distancing is Required. 
Audience participation is Encouraged Via Conference Call 

*Dial In (877) 402-9753 Access Code 1811087 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

February 18, 2021 
10:00 a.m. 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public  

G. Approval of Minutes 

1. November 19, 2020 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………….Page 2 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding the Operation Systems & Future Maintenance of Ponds 1 & 2 

2. Discussion Regarding Action on Irrigation Floats in the Ponds 

3. Discussion Regarding Action on Pond Spraying 

4. Discussion Regarding Clogged Drain Pipe 

5. Discussion Regarding Littoral Signage 

6. Discussion Regarding Shoreline Restoration/Rocks  

7. Restoration to CDD Property with Regards to the HOA Irrigation Project  

8. Reconsideration of HOA Requests…………………………………………………………………Page 9 

a. Plantings at Pickleball Courts of Clusia……………………………………………………...Page 10 

b. Adding Smaller Fountain to Lake Behind Portofino Homes…………………………………Page 11 

J. Administrative Matters 

2. District Attorney Update 

3. District Engineer Update 

4. Field Inspector Update 

5. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 12 

K. Board Members Comments 

1. Discussion Regarding Communications with HOA 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Due to Covid restrictions, masks and social distancing is required. 
Audience participation was encouraged via conference call. 

Dial In (877) 402-9753 Access Code 1811087 
NOVEMBER 19, 2020 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The November 19, 2020, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development 
District was called to order at 10:00 a.m. in the Tennis Pavilion at Verona Walk Community Center 
located at 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 6, 2020, as legally required.  
 
D. CONSIDER APPLICATIONS FOR BOARD VACANCIES & ADMINISTER OATHS 
OF OFFICE 
 
Applicants Richard Dombal, Peter Monti and Art Dobberstein introduced themselves and each gave 
a summary of their background and why they wanted to serve on the Board.   Ms. Meneely explained 
that two of the Board Members wanted to resign their seats and be appointed to the seats that have 
four year terms.  She explained the resignation and appointment process that would take place in order 
to accomplish the switching and filling of seats. 
 
Resident Joe Contaldi asked why the seat vacated in July was not publicized and filled earlier.  Mr. 
Urbancic explained the qualification process along with how vacancies are declared and filled.  He 
furthered that the appointment process the Board is going through now is appropriate and that the 
process is different than what an HOA does to fill vacancies. 
 
At this point, Ms. Czubkowski resigned from Seat #1. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cucinella, seconded by Mr. Clifford and passed 4 to 0, accepting Ms. 
Cucinella’s resignation. 
 
A motion was then made by Ms. Cucinella, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed 3 to 0, appointing 
Ms. Czubkowski to Seat #2. 
 
Ms. Meneely administered the oath of office to Ms. Czubkowski. 
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Mr. Clifford and passed 4 to 0, appointing Peter 
Monti to Seat #1. 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Ms. Meneely administered the oath of office to Mr. Monti. 
 
Mr. Hogan then resigned from Seat #3. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Ms. Cucinella and passed 5 to 0, accepting Mr. 
Hogan’s resignation. 
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Ms. Czubkowski and passed 4 to 0, appointing 
Mr. Hogan to Seat #4. 
 
Ms. Cucinella stepped down from the Board dais and was thanked by the Board for her many years 
of service to the District. 
 
Ms. Meneely administered the oath of office to Mr. Hogan. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Mr. Clifford and passed 4 o 0, appointing Richard 
Dombal to Seat #3. 
 
Ms. Meneely administered the oath of office to Mr. Dombal. 
 
E. REVIEW BOARD MEMBER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Mr. Urbancic went over the duties and responsibilities of a Board Member, including the requirement 
to submit Form 1, Sunshine Laws and Public Records and Ethics Law. 
 
F. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Supervisor Jack Hogan Present 
Supervisor Patrick Clifford Present 
Supervisor Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Supervisor Peter Monti  Present 
Supervisor Richard Dombal Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services 
General Counsel Greg Urbancic Coleman Yovanovich 

Koester 

District Engineer Terry Cole Hole Montes, Inc. 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Also present were Art Dobberstein, Joe & Diann Cucinella, Jerry Kallop, Joe Contaldi and Armand 
Fusco. 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

G. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

 Chairman 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Mr. Monti nominating Jack Hogan as the Chairman. 
 

 Vice Chairman 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Monti nominating Patrick Clifford as Vice 
Chairman. 
 

 Secretary/Treasurer 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Mr. Clifford nominating Kathleen Meneely as 
Secretary/Treasurer. 
 

 Assistant Secretaries 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Mr. Clifford nominating Peter Monti, Marilyn 
Czubkowski and Richard Dombal as Assistant Secretaries. 
 
A motion was then made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously 
approving the above slate of officers, as nominated. 
 
H. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hogan requested, and it was the consensus of the Board, to add a discussion on floats in the lakes 
under Old Business. 
 
Ms. Meneely requested, and it was the consensus of the Board, that the Clarke proposal for 
maintenance of the front lakes be considered under Administrative Matters. 
 
I. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
J. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  September 17, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  
 
The September 17, 2020, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Clifford and passed unanimously 
approving the minutes of the September 17, 2020, Regular Board Meeting, as presented.   
 
K. OLD BUSINESS  
 1.  Discussion on Floats in Lakes 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Mr. Hogan asked if Mr. Hirniak heard anything about the floats, as they are a distraction.  Mr. Hirniak 
indicated he checked on them, as there are three that are used to lift the irrigation pumps.  Mr. Hogan 
asked if they could be painted black so they are less obvious.  Mr. Hirniak indicated he would ask the 
Town Manager for an update and relay the Board’s feelings.  Mr. Hogan then requested that this item 
be further discussed at the next meeting. 
 
L. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2020-08 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Amended 
Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2020-08 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL 
YEAR 2019/2020 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO 
CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Clifford and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2020-08, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2020-09 – Ratifying Actions Taken Pursuant to EO No. 200-
69 
 
Resolution No. 2020-09 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-09 
 
A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
RATIFYING AND APPROVING ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AT MEETINGS HELD VIA 
MEDIA COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY PURSUANT TO 
EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-69, AS AMENDED AND 
EXTENDED, AS A RESULT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC  

 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Monti and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2020-09, as presented. 
 
 3.  Consider 2-Year Renewal Option – Grau & Associates 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously approving 
the 2-year renewal option with Grau & Associates. 
 
 4.  Discussion Regarding Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors’ Site Visit 

Page 5



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Ms. Cucinella stated that one of her last duties as Chairperson was meeting with two representatives 
of the District’s insurance company and walking around the community for a review of the property.  
Ms. Cucinella noted that she explained to the representatives what the District owns and the 
corresponding responsibilities.  She was happy to report that the representatives gave the District two 
big thumbs up. 
 
 5.  Consider Request from HOA for Fountain in Portofino Lake 
 
Ms. Meneely gave a summary on the request from the HOA.  Mr. Urbancic explained that if the Board 
is inclined to approve the request he would draw up a license agreement similar to what was used 
previously that requires the HOA to pay all costs associated with the fountain and that such structure 
cannot interfere with lake management. 
 
Mr. Dombal stated that he believed the fountains increase oxygen content, which is a good thing.  Mr. 
Monti had questions on such and did some research.  He indicated that the County tries to deter 
fountains, as it reduces the volume of water and the City has banned fountains in downtown areas, as 
they aerate pollutants of micro-bacteria.  He added that he had contacted other organizations and 
found that there is actually a lack of penetration of oxygenated water in such fountains and could 
provide this information to the other Board Members.  He furthered that there was not any backup 
that shows that the fountain would mitigate noise for the neighbors and said that in total, there is just 
no justification to approve what had been presented to the District. 
 
Mr. Hogan stated that he was taken aback by the letter sent by the Town Manager, as he attended the 
HOA board meeting where this was discussed as sound mitigation for that part of the neighborhood.  
He indicated that a second survey had been taken with a negative response and that had not been 
included in the request backup. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Mr. Monti, denying the request. 
 
Mr. Contaldi expressed that he was surprised by the comments of the Board regarding sound, as he 
felt their concern was only water quality.  He indicated he felt this was a valid request from the HOA 
and should be approved since it is at no cost to the District. 
 
Mr. Kallop suggested the fountain be approved with a control switch and that he could not see why 
approving it would not be a benefit to the community. 
 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that windy days can bring water to amenities from fountains, including the 
pickle ball courts. 
 
Mr. Dombal stated he would like more time to see what the scientific ramifications were. 
 
Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 3 to 2 denying the HOA’s request for a fountain in 
Portofino Lake, with Ms. Czubkowski and Mr. Dombal dissenting. 
 
 6.  Discussion Regarding CDD Policy for Draining Pool 
 
Ms. Cucinella stated that the ACC had requested the CDD make a policy on drawing water from 
pools.  Mr. Hirniak stated that there was already guidance in place from the State of Florida and the 

Page 6



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Board adopted the process years ago.  He furthered that the process involved running the water over 
adjoining grass so it is filtered and chemicals do not go into the lake.  Ms. Czubkowski stated she 
would forward the information to the HOA. 
 
M. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  District Attorney Update 
 
Mr. Urbancic advised that the governor had not extended the order allowing government to meeting 
virtually, but that there was talk of it once again being allowed.  He indicated he would keep the Board 
updated on the matter.  
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 
 
There was no District Engineer update at this time. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 
 
Mr. Hirniak went over a diagram of the lake system and noted the status of the lake levels.  He stated 
that the lake edge trimming had been completed. 
 
Mr. Hirniak advised that the littoral signs were falling over in places and needed to be replaced.  He 
indicated he would provide pricing at a future meeting, but opined that with 251 needing replacement, 
the cost would be around $25,000. 
   
Mr. Hirniak advised that the new cart had arrived and was being stored in a rented residential garage. 
 
Mr. Hirniak indicated that he had been reviewing the front lakes and went over the cycle system, 
noting that the pump runs all the time.  He added that he intends to put it on a maintenance schedule.  
Mr. Clifford asked if the CDD owned the pump and Mr. Hirniak responded that it does, but not the 
fountains.  Mr. Hogan opined that the front lakes were for aesthetics and if the HOA was to maintain 
their value they should keep paying to maintain the pump.  He added it was one community, but this 
was an HOA issue.   
 
 4.  District Manager Update 
 a. Financials 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
  b. Clarke Proposal for Maintenance of the Front Lakes 
 
Ms. Meneely stated that a contract had been sent out for review from Clarke for the maintenance of 
the two front lakes at a cost of $300 per month.  Mr. Urbancic indicated he had made revisions and 
Mr. Hirniak noted that he would like to meet with Clarke before a contract is signed to be sure what 
is necessary is included. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously approving 
the contract, subject to the Manager, attorney and Field Inspector agreeing to the terms and 
authorizing the Chairman to execute same. 

Page 7



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Ms. Meneely reminded the Board Members that they are each entitled to a $200 stipend per meeting.  
Mr. Urbancic went over the state statute and the amounts allowed.  He added that it was the personal 
decision of each Board Member whether or not to take the stipend.  A roll call was taken and each 
Board Member declined the stipend. 
 
N. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Hogan stated, as the new Chairman, he would like to work on better internal communication with 
the HOA and asked that it be an item of discussion on the next agenda.  He thanked the other Board 
Members for their confidence in him to serve as Chairman. 
 
Ms. Czubkowski went over a chart of approvals that had taken place coordinating with the ACC. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 11:52 a.m. on a motion made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Monti and passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 8



Page 9



 

Page 10



Page 11



Verona Walk
Community Development District

 Financial Report For
 January 2021

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15


	Verona Walk Community Development District - February 18, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	November 19, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Reconsideration of HOA Requests
	Plantings at Pickleball Courts of Clusia
	Adding Smaller Fountain to Lake Behind Portofino Homes

	Financials




